
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

TUESDAY, November 4, 2014 
 

 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2014 

   Page 1 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/04/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, November 4, 2014 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no 
later than 10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Bill Underwood 
Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 
 

 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 

b. Minutes: 
a. August 5, 2014, Regular Town Council Minutes 
b. August 19, 2014, Town Council Workshop Minutes 

 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2014 

   Page 2 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/04/2014 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. Loxahatchee Groves Girl Scout Troop No. 20673 will be announcing a Thanksgiving 
Food Drive to benefit the children of the Loxahatchee Groves Elementary School. 
(Frank Schiola) 

 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS   
 

a. Virginia Standish, Chair of the Finance Advisory & Audit Committee (FAAC) to 
present the Financials Ending July August, and September FY2014.  She will also 
provide an update on the municipal Software System. 
 

 
6.  RESOLUTIONS  
 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 2014-16:  (Support for Treasure Coast Regional Planning 
Council)  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, STRONGLY OBJECTING TO RECENT ACTION TAKEN BY THE 
PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS TO WITHDRAW 
PALM BEACH COUNTY FROM THE TREASURE COAST REGIONAL PLANNING 
COUNCIL AND TO REQUEST MEMBERSHIP IN THE SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL 
PLANNING COUNCIL INSTEAD; AND STRONGLY SUPPORTING THE COUNTY’S 
CONTIUNED MEMBERSHIP IN THE TREASURE COAST REGIONAL PLANNING 
COUNCIL; PROVIDING FOR DISTRIBUTION; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 
 

 
b. RESOLUTION NO 2014-17:  (Authorizing 6th Court North Equestrian Trail 

Improvements)  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE 6TH COURT NORTH EQUESTRIAN TRAIL 
IMPROVEMENTS; FINDING THAT FURTHER COMPETITIVE BIDDING IS NOT IN THE 
BEST INTEREST OF THE TOWN AS PROVIDED IN ORDINANCE 2008-09; AWARDING 
THE CONTRACT TO C & C LOADER SERVICES FOR THE 6TH COURT 
EQUESTRIAN TRIAL IMPROVEMENTS AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXPENDITURE OF TWENTY EIGHT THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS 
($28,300) FOR SUCH WORK; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO PROCEED WITH THE WORK; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

2 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2014 

   Page 3 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/04/2014 
 

 
 
 
 

7.  ORDINANCES  
 

a. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-06: PUBLIC HEARING/FIRST READING:  (Day 
Property-Land Use Plan Amendment) 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING AMENDMENT 14-2(SS) TO THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN, CONCERNING A SMALL-SCALE 
LAND USE PLAN AMENDMENT APPLICATION PROPOSED BY THE OWNERS OF THE 
PROPERTY, WILLIE H. AND FRANKIE J. DAY TO CHANGE THE DESIGNATION OF 
THE SUBJECT USE OF LAND FROM RURAL RESIDENTIAL (1 DU PER 5 ACRES) TO 
COMMERCIAL LOW TO ACCOMMODATE THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF A 
MAXIMUM OF 9.3 ACRES OF COMMERCIAL USES LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST 
CORNER OF OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD AND FOLSOM ROAD, LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENT TO THE COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN TO REFLECT SUCH CHANGE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. 2014-07: PUBLIC HEARING/FIRST READING:   (Day 

Property – Rezoning) 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING AMENDMENT REZ 14-02 TO THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, CONDERNING A 
REZONING APPLICATION PROPOSED BY THE OWNERS OF THE PROPERTY, WILLIE 
H. AND FRANKIE J. DAY TO CHANGE THE ZONING DESIGNATION OF THE SUBJECT 
PROPERTY FROM AGRICULTURAL RESIDENTIAL (AR) TO COMMERCIAL LOW (CL) 
TO ACCOMMODATE THE FUTURE DEVELOPMENT OF A MAXIMUM OF 9.3 ACRES 
OF COMMERCIAL USES LOCATED AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF OKEECHOBEE 
BOULEVARD AND FOLSOM ROAD, LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA; 
PROVIDING FOR AMENDM,ENT TO THE ZONING MAP TO REFLECT SUCH CHANGE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 
 
 

3 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 4, 2014 

   Page 4 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
11/04/2014 
 

 
8.  MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 
 

a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT:  Updates on various activities and issues concerning 
the Town. 
 

 
9.  OLD BUSINESS - NONE 
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Consideration for approval of Equestrian Signs designed and approved by the Roadway, 
Equestrian Trails and Greenway Committee (RETGAC). 
 

b. Consideration for approval to authorize the Town Attorney to draft a referendum to be 
placed on the March 2015 Town Municipal Election removing all Election criteria from 
the Charter. 
 

c. Consideration to place the Roadway, Equestrian Trail, and Greenway Committee 
(RETGAC) on hiatus. 

 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 
b. Town Attorney   

 
c. Town Council Members 
 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for November 18, 2014. 
 

 
Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Attorney Invoice 

5 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GOREN, CHEROF, DOODY & EZROL, P.A.
Attorneys at Law

3099 East Commercial Boulevard
Suite 200

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308
Telephone (954) 771-4500

Page: 1
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 10/28/2014
14579 Southern Boulevard ACCOUNT NO: 1574-0702400R
Suite 2 STATEMENT NO:  98
Loxahatachee Groves  FL  33470
 
Attn: William F. Underwood, II - Town Manager

General Matters

 
 

HOURS
10/01/2014 MDC Review pending matters to update Bill Underwood. 0.30

10/03/2014 MDC Review list of pending items for Bill Underwood. 0.20

10/07/2014 MDC Review matters with B. Underwood; prepare for, attend Council meeting. 2.30

10/08/2014 MDC Review pending items with WU. 0.50

10/14/2014 MDC Telephone call with William Underwood on pending matters; review agenda
items; prepare Resolution for S & W Agreement; telephone call with JF on
ULDC matters. 1.20

10/15/2014 MDC Review miscellaneous agenda matters; telephone call with J. Whipple. 0.30

10/16/2014 MDC Review agenda items; telephone call with BU, BT on Code Enforcement
Policies; telephone call with BU on miscellaneous items. 0.80

10/17/2014 MDC Miscellaneous telephone calls with BU on ILA's with LGWCD; review 2nd
comment on Trails ILA. 1.40

10/18/2014 MDC Continue reviewing, revising Trails ILA. 0.40

10/20/2014 MDC Continue reviewing Trails ILA; review materials for 10/21 Town Council
meeting. 0.50

DJD Discussion relative to horse trails. 0.30

10/21/2014 MDC Review materials; telephone call with PU on pending items; prepare for,
attend Council meeting. 2.70

10/22/2014 MDC Review items from 10/21 meeting; review pending items with Bill
Underwood. 1.20

10/23/2014 SRW Review code enforcement cost summary.  Telephone conference call with
MDC re: same. 0.30

MDC Review materials; telephone call with Bev Tew on code cost recovery
issues; prepare for, attend PZ Board Meeting. 3.50

6 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page: 2
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 10/28/2014

ACCOUNT NO: 1574-0702400R
STATEMENT NO:  98

General Matters

 
 

HOURS
10/24/2014 SRW Met with MDC re: code cost policy. 0.20

MDC Revise ICA for Trails; telephone call with Bill Underwood; review OIG
inquiry on gas tax dollars; prepare response to OIG inquiry. 1.80

10/26/2014 MDC Continue revising Trials ILA. 0.20

10/27/2014 MDC Revise letter and forward same to OIG (gas tax); revise comments on
LGWCD ILA; forward to Bill Underwood; telephone call with Bill Underwood
on pending items. 0.70
FOR CURRENT SERVICES RENDERED 18.80 3,478.00

RECAPITULATION
TIMEKEEPER HOURS HOURLY RATE TOTAL
D.J. DOODY 0.30 $185.00 $55.50
MICHAEL D. CIRULLO 18.00 185.00 3,330.00
STACEY R WEINGER 0.50 185.00 92.50

Photocopies 42.70
TOTAL EXPENSES THRU 10/27/2014 42.70

TOTAL CURRENT WORK 3,520.70

BALANCE DUE $3,520.70

 AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY BILLED NOT INCLUDED ABOVE

7 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GOREN, CHEROF, DOODY & EZROL, P.A.
Attorneys at Law

3099 East Commercial Boulevard
Suite 200

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308
Telephone (954) 771-4500

Page: 1
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 10/28/2014
14579 Southern Boulevard ACCOUNT NO: 1574-1004800R
Suite 2 STATEMENT NO:  26
Loxahatachee Groves  FL  33470
 
Attn: William F. Underwood, II - Town Manager

Equestrian Partners Land Use Amendment (Solar
Sportsystems, Inc.)

 
 

HOURS
10/06/2014 MDC Telephone call with JF on status of conditions for approval. 0.20

10/07/2014 MDC Miscellaneous telephone calls on status of B Road; review e-mails; update
Bill Underwood. 0.30

10/08/2014 MDC Review revised B Rd Agreement; confer with William Underwood. 0.50

10/09/2014 MDC Review materials; telephone call with JF; prepare for and attend meeting re:
BRd Agreement. 1.60

10/24/2014 MDC Review memo of law on contributions; confer with BU on status of project;
prepare letter to LGWCD re: B Road. 0.30

10/26/2014 MDC Letter to LGWCD re: B Road. 0.20
FOR CURRENT SERVICES RENDERED 3.10 573.50

RECAPITULATION
TIMEKEEPER HOURS HOURLY RATE TOTAL
MICHAEL D. CIRULLO 3.10 $185.00 $573.50

TOTAL CURRENT WORK 573.50

BALANCE DUE $573.50

 AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY BILLED NOT INCLUDED ABOVE

8 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GOREN, CHEROF, DOODY & EZROL, P.A.
Attorneys at Law

3099 East Commercial Boulevard
Suite 200

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308
Telephone (954) 771-4500

Page: 1
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 10/28/2014
14579 Southern Boulevard ACCOUNT NO: 1574-1004840R
Suite 2 STATEMENT NO:  31
Loxahatachee Groves  FL  33470
 
Attn: William F. Underwood, II - Town Manager

Loxahatachee Groves Commons

 
 

HOURS
10/06/2014 MDC Telephone call with JF on status of conditions for approval. 0.20

10/07/2014 MDC Miscellaneous telephone calls on status of B Road; review e-mails; update
Bill Underwood. 0.30

10/08/2014 MDC Review revised B Rd Agreement; confer with William Underwood. 0.50

10/09/2014 MDC Review materials; telephone call with JF; prepare for and attend meeting re:
BRd Agreement. 1.60

10/24/2014 MDC Review memo of law on contributions; confer with BU on status of project;
prepare letter to LGWCD re: B Road. 0.30

10/26/2014 MDC Letter to LGWCD re: B Road. 0.20
FOR CURRENT SERVICES RENDERED 3.10 573.50

RECAPITULATION
TIMEKEEPER HOURS HOURLY RATE TOTAL
MICHAEL D. CIRULLO 3.10 $185.00 $573.50

TOTAL CURRENT WORK 573.50

BALANCE DUE $573.50

 AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY BILLED NOT INCLUDED ABOVE

9 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



GOREN, CHEROF, DOODY & EZROL, P.A.
Attorneys at Law

3099 East Commercial Boulevard
Suite 200

Fort Lauderdale, Florida 33308
Telephone (954) 771-4500

Page: 1
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 10/28/2014
14579 Southern Boulevard ACCOUNT NO: 1574-1107582R
Suite 2 STATEMENT NO:  1
Loxahatachee Groves  FL  33470
 
Attn: William F. Underwood, II - Town Manager

2014 Day Property Amendment

 
 

HOURS
09/30/2014 MDC Telephone call with JF on status of application, schedules for review. 0.50

10/02/2014 MDC Telephone call with JF on staff report. 0.20

10/06/2014 MDC Review draft staff report; telephone call with JF. 0.80

10/22/2014 MDC Review materials for 10/23 PZ Board meeting; confer with Bill Underwood. 0.50

10/24/2014 MDC Review and revise Ordinances for LUA and lezone; confer with DJD re:
Restrictions Covenant. 1.50

DJD Conference relative to Restrictive Covenants. 0.50

10/27/2014 MDC Revise Ordinances; update JF; telephone call with JF on finalizing materials
for 11/4 Town Council meeting. 0.30
FOR CURRENT SERVICES RENDERED 4.30 795.50

RECAPITULATION
TIMEKEEPER HOURS HOURLY RATE TOTAL
D.J. DOODY 0.50 $185.00 $92.50
MICHAEL D. CIRULLO 3.80 185.00 703.00

TOTAL CURRENT WORK 795.50

BALANCE DUE $795.50

 AMOUNTS PREVIOUSLY BILLED NOT INCLUDED ABOVE

10 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.b. 

Consent Agenda 
 

Minutes 

August 5, 2014 Regular Town Council Meeting Minutes 

August 19, 2014 Town Council Workshop Minutes 

11 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014 

   Page 1 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/05/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, August 5, 2014 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no later than 
10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:03 p.m.  In attendance were Mayor David 
Browning, Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, and Jim Rockett.   Also present 
were Town Manager Mark Kutney, acting Town Attorney Jacob Horowitz, and Town Clerk 
Janet K. Whipple. 

 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 

Town Manager Kutney mentioned that under 2.c. 1) of the Consent Agenda to add Public 
hearing for Solid Waste to the title.  Mayor Browning noted we would bring that up under 
Consent Agenda. 

 
Councilman Liang arrived at 7:04 p.m.  
 

c. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion:  Councilman Goltzene requested that 4.a. and 4.b. under Presentations, be 
switched, and made a motion to approve the Agenda, as amended.  Vice-Mayor Jarriel 
seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 5/0. 

12 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014 

   Page 2 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/05/2014 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
  

a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 

b. Motion to ratify and confirm the date for the First Millage and Budget Hearing as September 
11, 2014; at 7:00 p.m. (Date discussed during the July 18, 2014 meeting was September 9, 
2014 which was incorrect). 
 

c. Motion to approve September Town Council Meetings all scheduled at 7:00 p.m. as reflected 
in the following: 
 

1) September 11, 2014-Regular Town Council Meeting/Tentative Millage & Budget 
2) September 16, 2014-Regular Town Council Meeting 
3) September 23, 2014-Final Millage & Budget 

 
Councilman Rockett requested to discuss the September Meeting dates under item 2.c. from the 
Consent Agenda.  The item did not have to be pulled. 
 
Town Manager Kutney added the Public Hearing for the Solid Waste under item number 2.c.1). 
 
Dates were discussed, and it was decided to change the one meeting date from September 16, 
2014, to September 2, 2014.  September 11, 2014, and the September 23, 2014, have to stand as 
presented. 
 
Town Attorney Horowitz commented, (when it was noted that two (2) members of Council will 
not be present during the September 11, 2014, Meeting,) that three (3) Members of Council 
constitute a quorum and all three have to vote unanimously on an item for it to pass. 
 
d. Consideration for approval of the Seventh (7th) Addendum to the Law Enforcement Service 

Agreement between Sheriff Ric L. Bradshaw and the Town of Loxahatchee Groves. 
 

Motion:  Councilman Liang made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda, as amended; 
with the dates for the September Meetings as:  September 2, 2014, September 11, 2014, and 
September 23, 2014.  Councilman Rockett seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion 
passed 5/0. 

 
 

3.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Jerry Wuhrman, 154 Commodore Drive, Jupiter, Florida, representing Waste Wise Limited, 
provided a presentation for a proposed plan exclusively for Loxahatchee Groves.  Waste disposal 
from stables, vegetative and food waste, can be processed by composting and adding 
amendments to the soil.  This plan is to assist in livestock waste control. 
 
It was the consensus of the Council to allow consideration of the presentation. 
 

13 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014 

   Page 3 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/05/2014 
 

Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, would like the Town to get with the Loxahatchee Groves Water 
Control District (LGWCD) to discuss feasibility for lower road costs. 
 
Jeff Miller, 691 Hyde Park Road, discussed extensive power outages and the inability of Florida 
Power and Light (FPL) to repair them in a timely manner, as trees from private properties are in 
the way of service. He also mention that Collecting Canal Road is still a problem with dust, and 
requested Council please reconsider adding the road resurfacing back into the Budget.  
 
Council requested Town Manager Kutney arrange for an update from FPL and AT&T. 
 
Robert Austin, 13845 Collecting Canal Road, requested Collecting Canal Road be paved.  
 
Motion:  Councilman Ryan made a motion to receive and file documents received from Dan 
Haunert.  Councilman Rockett seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion passed 5/0. 
 
Dan Haunert, 2150 E Road, expressed concerns about a neighbor filling the pond on her 
property, and questioned whether it required a permit.  He was asking if there were criteria for 
filling a pond, and the safety of doing so without a fence.  
 
The Council discussed the criteria with Town Manager Kutney, and asked him to investigate.  If 
the property is considered a wetland there may be a concern. 
  
Mayor Browning read into the record multiple Public Comments concerning the paving of 
Collecting Canal Road. 
 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Road, felt the Town needs to find a vendor who can do a better 
job than the one the Town hired.  
 
Ken Johnson, 15409 Collecting Canal Road, explained that there were handouts that 
accompanied the Public Comments concerning Collecting Canal Road.  He felt there were 
health, safety, and speeding issues with the Road as it is now.  Cut through traffic is bad, and he 
suggested the item to resurface Collecting Canal Road be put back on the upcoming budget for 
fair consideration. 
 
Todd McLendon, 3481 D Road, wanted to know who was responsible for Collecting Canal 
Road, and noted many of the roads paved in the Town were paid for by the residents. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel stated if the Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District (LGWCD) paves the 
road, then the road is transferred to the Town.  Right now, LGWCD owns the road. 
 
Council discussed the cost of resurfacing, needing a referendum, and cost sharing. 
 
Ariel Reda, 12891 Collecting Canal Road, stated he had a dog hit on the road and there had been 
a car crash outside his property.  Traffic is too fast.  He will contribute whatever he can to help. 
 

14 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014 

   Page 4 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/05/2014 
 

Councilman Goltzene stated the discussion of Collecting Canal Road was not germane to this 
meeting.  The Budget is the Council’s priority.  He suggested a referendum in October. 
 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  

 
a. Review of Fiscal Year 2015 General Fund Budget. 
 
b. Wayne Burns, CEO Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce providing a 

presentation on the status of the Central Palm Beach County Chamber of Commerce 
Building located at 13901 Southern Boulevard, Loxahatchee Groves, Florida. 
 

(4.b. now 4.a.) Wayne Burns spoke first about the Chamber of Commerce Building and its 
original purpose. He reported there are opportunities for the Town staff, for meetings, and 
public offices. The building is surrounded by park and park trails, of which he has a printed file.  
 
Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion to approve a receive and file document from 
Mr. Burns.  Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion passed 4/0.  
(Councilman Goltzene had left the dais). 
 
Mr. Burns further explained to layout of the Chamber Building, and how it would be beneficial 
as a Town Hall.  He requested to meet with the Town Manager for further direction as to which 
way the Town would like to proceed. 
 
Council expressed their concerns on funding, parking, size of the building, purchase options, 
and whether the Town would need a referendum for the building.  
 
It was the consensus of the Town Council for Mr. Burns to speak with Town Manager 
Kutney concerning the Chamber of Commerce Building. 
 
Mayor Browning read a Public Comment Card into the record from Christine St. John, 14220 
43rd Road North, against the Town acquiring the Chamber of Commerce Building. 
 

(4.a. now 4.b.)  Bill Underwood explained the Budget.  
 
Council discussed with Mr. Underwood the use of smart phones, communication services fund 
balances, tax certificates and what benefits they would be to the Town, and various line items in 
the Budget.  The Town did not need magazine subscriptions, and the miscellaneous subscriptions 
line item can be reduced.  During the July 1, 2014 Town Council Meeting the Council reduced 
Legal services from $120,000 to $90,000 and Public Works from $14,000 to $4,000. 
 
Motion:  Councilman Goltzené made a motion to restore the $10,000, back to the Public 
Works line item.   Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion failed 1/4 
with Mayor Browning, Vice-Mayor Jarriel, Councilmen Rockett and Liang dissenting. 
 
Mayor Browning called for a break 9:01 to 9:09 p.m. 

15 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014 

   Page 5 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/05/2014 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

a. Virginia Standish, Board Member of the FAAC (Financial Advisory and Audit 
Committee), to provide Financial Report Ending July 2014. 

 
Virginia Standish provided a Financial Report ending July 2014. She touched on the 
Transportation Fund and Solid Waste Fund; and handed out a policy for “Methodology for the 
Prioritizing of Town Roads Improvements”.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Rockett made a motion to “receive and file” Ms. Standish’s handout.  
Councilman Liang seconded the motion.  Upon vote the motion passed 5/0. 
 
It was the Consensus of the Town Council to request Town Manager Kutney to work on a 
Policy. 
 
 

6.  RESOLUTIONS – NONE 
 

 
7.  ORDINANCES - NONE 
 
 

  8.  ADMINISTRATIVE UPDATE – Town Manager Kutney 

a. IGC Meeting  
 

b. Okeechobee Boulevard  
 

c. Captive Wildlife Regulations   
 

d. Palm Beach State College  

Town Manager Kutney provided his reports. 
 
9.  OLD BUSINESS - NONE 
 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Town Manager Kutney to provide information on Code Enforcement matters. 
 

Town Manager Kutney made a few statements concerning the pending Code Enforcement 
matters, and then turned the matter over to Bev Tew, President of Tew and Taylor, the Town’s 
Code Enforcement Vendor.  
 

16 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014 

   Page 6 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/05/2014 
 

b. Beverly Tew, with Tew and Taylor, to provide information on Code Enforcement 
matters.  (Documentation already provided under separate cover). 

 
Bev Tew, President of Tew and Taylor, stated her company was a private vendor and it was not 
her intent to embarrass the presenters; however, the presentations made against her company 
threatened her contract with the Town. She clarified/itemized and will investigate the charges 
which had been brought forward, as they were very serious claims. 
 

c. Consideration for 2nd Change Order Request from North Florida Emulsions for 
additional Micro Surfacing yardage on all three (3) roads:  Bryan Road, Compton 
Road and Marcella Boulevard. 

 
Council discussed the Change Order from North Florida Emulsions, and how much the Town 
has spent to date on this road project. 
 
Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion to pay the second Change order from North 
Florida Emulsions.  Councilman Rockett seconded the motion.  
 
Members of the audience expressed their opinions on this matter. 
 
Upon vote, the motion failed 0/5 with Mayor Browning, Vice-Mayor Jarriel, Councilmen 
Goltzene, Liang and Rockett dissenting. 
 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

Members of the audience expressed opinions on roads and equestrian trails. 
 

b. Town Attorney   
 
Town Attorney Horowitz reiterated that during the upcoming Town Council Meeting of 
September 11, 2014, all Members of the Council present will have to vote.  If only three come, 
three have to vote. He then thanked the Council for their consideration, and noted Town 
Attorney Cirullo will see them in two weeks. 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

Councilman Goltzené thanked everyone for coming. 
 

Vice-Mayor Jarriel thanked everyone for coming and apologized for such a late meeting. 
 

Councilman Liang thanked everyone for coming and expressed a good job to all. 
 

17 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014 

   Page 7 of 7  
 

 
Town Council Minutes 
08/05/2014 
 

Councilman Rockett asked to take this opportunity to ask Town Manager Kutney about 6th Court 
North, and what it would take to get the trail work done, move forward and present something at 
the next meeting. 

 
It was the Consensus of the Town Council to have Town Manager Kutney provide an 
update on the 6th Road North trail. 

 
Mayor Browning liked Ms. Standish’s idea that all easements should be open to equestrians now.  
He also noted that there is a big pot hole on D Road, just south of Okeechobee Boulevard; and he 
does realize the Town does have a problem with AT&T and FPL services. 

 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned the 
meeting at 10:17 p.m. 
 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
These minutes were approved during the ___________________________Town Council Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

18 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 1 of 3  
 

 
Town Council Workshop Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Workshop 
Tuesday, August 19, 2014 at 6:00 p.m. 

Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 
   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)                 Town Manager Mark Kutney 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)          Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)           Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 6:10 p.m. Present were Mayor David Browning, 
Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel, and Councilman Jim Rockett.   Also present were Town Manager Mark 
Kutney, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, Town Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann, and Town 
Clerk Janet K. Whipple. 
 

b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 

No action was taken. 
 
4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

a. John Wasukanis will be making a brief PowerPoint presentation concerning Palm Beach 
State College Loxahatchee Groves Campus, Five (5) Year Master Plan.  Anticipating that 
the Council will ask questions and encourage public comment, Richard Becker, and 
James Storms will also be in attendance, as well as, Brian Seymour with Gunster, to 
answer any questions representing the college.   

 

19 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 2 of 3  
 

 
Town Council Workshop Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

John Wasukanis, Director of Facilities of Palm Beach State College, presented a PowerPoint 
presentation on Phase 1 of the Palm Beach State College Loxahatchee Groves Campus Five (5) 
Year Master Development Plan.   
 
Council discussed with Mr. Wasukanis how many building would be in the different phases of 
the project, the concern of funding, ponds on campus and when they would be constructed, the 
use of Loxahatchee Groves canals and paying assessment fees,  
 
 
11.  CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

Bill Louda, 1300 E Road, reference the picture of the campus he saw in the newspaper and felt it 
did not reflect the Rural Vista Guidelines.  He also questioned what assessments other 
commercial properties pay. 
 
Grace Joyce, 3886 147th Ave North, noted she serves on the Loxahatchee Groves Planning and 
Zoning Board and there had previously been a lot of conversation on the site plan.  She had 
asked if, in the plan, whether major truck traffic was accounted for.  She was informed that truck 
as well as bus traffic had been discussed.  Ms. Joyce also suggested more trees around the 
parking lot. 
 
Mr. Wasukanis reported that the plan called for a sub paved system under the parking lot and that 
concrete did not drain well if too many trees are planted. 
 
Keith Harris, 2580 C Road, also noted he was on the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board, and 
stated the Project will be an asset to the Town.  He also brought up roundabouts and traffic lights 
on Okeechobee Boulevard. 
 
Mr. Wasukanis noted in the initial presentation paving of B Road from the entrance of the 
Campus to Southern Boulevard had been planned. 

 
b. Town Attorney 
   

No comments from the Town Attorney 
 

c. Town Council Members 
 

Vice-Mayor Jarriel noted the security of the construction site should be a consideration. 
 
Councilman Rockett noted his appreciation. 
 
Mayor Browning thanked the presenters and expressed his appreciation for the effort that was 
put into this plan. 
 

20 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL WORKSHOP MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 19, 2014 

   Page 3 of 3  
 

 
Town Council Workshop Minutes 
08/19/2014 
 

 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion:  Vice-Mayor Jarriel made a motion to adjourn the Workshop.  Councilman 
Rockett seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 3/0. 
 
There being not further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned 
the Workshop at 6:52 p.m.      
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________             ___________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approve at the November 4, 2014 Town Council Meeting. 

21 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6.a. 

RESOLUTIONS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-16 

(TCRPC) 

 
 

22 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO.  6.a.

MEETING DATE: 11/4/2014 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, ICMA-CM 

 
SUBJECT:  Support for Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council (TCRPC) Membership 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: Palm Beach County Municipal League is requesting support of its 
members in an effort to stop the Palm Beach Board of County Commissioners from requesting 
membership in the South Florida Regional Planning Council (SFRPC).    
 
Problem Solution:  Town Council to provide support to the Palm Beach County Municipal 
League by adopting a resolution supporting the County’s continued members in the TCRPC.  

Palm Beach County has been a member of the TCRPC for over thirty-five (35) years and this 
organization is extremely familiar with the issues and concerns of Palm Beach County and the 
thirty-eight (38) municipalities within the County.     

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
    
On October 7, 2014, the Board of County Commissioners voted to take all steps necessary to 
withdraw from the TCRPC and request membership in the SFRPC. 
 
On October 22, 2014, the PBC League of Cities Board of Directors voted on their Resolution 
2014-02 objecting to recent action taken by the Palm Beach County Board of County 
Commissioners to withdraw Palm Beach County from the Treasure Coast Regional Planning 
Council and to request membership in the South Florida Regional Planning Council; and 
strongly supports the County’s continued membership in the TCRPC. 
  
 
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
  
   Resolution 2014-16 
 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  N/A  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
  Motion to adopt Resolution 2014-16. 

23 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 Res 2014-16-Treasure Coast Regional Planning-Board Support 

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2014-16 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, STRONGLY OBJECTING TO 
RECENT ACTION TAKEN BY THE PALM BEACH COUNTY BOARD OF 
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS TO WITHDRAW PALM BEACH COUNTY 
FROM THE TREASURE COAST REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL AND TO 
REQUEST MEMBERSHIP IN THE SOUTH FLORIDA REGIONAL 
PLANNING COUNCIL INSTEAD; AND STRONGLY SUPPORTING THE 
COUNTY’S CONTIUNED MEMBERSHIP IN THE TREASURE COAST 
REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL; PROVIDING FOR DISTRIBUTION; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 

 
WHEREAS, the Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners (“BOCC”) 

recently took action by means of a 4-3 vote on October 7, 2014 authorizing its staff to research 

all necessary steps to withdraw Palm Beach County (the “County”) from the Treasure Coast 

Regional Planning Council (“TCRPC”) and to request membership in the South Florida Regional 

Planning Council (“SFRPC”) in spite of opposition expressed at the meeting by municipal 

representatives and others; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, the County has been a member of the TCRPC for more than thirty-five (35) 
 
years, since 1976; and 

 
 

WHEREAS, during that lengthy tenure, the staff at the TCRPC has become acutely 

aware of the issues and concerns of the County as well as of the thirty-eight (38) Municipalities 

located therein as they relate to the growth management, transportation demands, water concerns 

and general land use planning; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, there is little, if any, evidence that the SFRPC has the same depth of 

understanding of the issues that the County and its municipalities are facing; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, the strategic policies found in the TCRPC Regional Policy Plan differ 

greatly from those found in the SFRPC Regional Policy Plan; and 
 
 

24 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2 Res 2014-16-Treasure Coast Regional Planning-Board Support 

WHEREAS, the County and the municipalities have incorporated many of the TCRPC 

policies into their comprehensive plans which guide their growth patterns; and which would 

require revision if the change to the SFRPC is achieved; and 

 
WHEREAS,  many municipalities located in Palm Beach County are involved in long 

term planning activities with the TCRPC which would be rendered meaningless if this change 

were to occur; and 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the  minimal  reasons  supporting  change  found  in  the  back-up 

documentation for the agenda item and the discussions at the October 7, 2014 meeting centered 

around saving money in the form of reduced membership fees to be paid to the SFRPC as 

opposed to the TCRPC; and the diverse interests of the counties comprising the TCRPC; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, since County ad valorem tax dollars are used to pay for the membership in 

the TCRPC and are derived from all those persons and entities owning property in the County, 

each property owner is paying for this membership and deserves a voice in this abrupt move 

taken by the County with very little, if any, sound reasoning as to why such a move would 

benefit all local governments located in the County; and 
 
 

WHEREAS, long term relationships forged through more than thirty-five (35) years of 

working with the TCRPC and the in-depth understanding the TCRPC staff has of the County’s 

and the thirty-eight (38) municipalities’ land use issues should not be discarded without 

substantial and powerful reasons, which have not been clearly articulated by the members of the 

BOCC, to date. 
 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, THAT: 
 
 

SECTION 1: the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, strongly objects to 

recent action taken by the Palm Beach County Board of County Commissioners to withdraw Palm 

Beach County from the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council  and  to  request  membership  

in  the  South  Florida  Regional  Planning  Council;  and strongly supports the County’s 

25 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



3 Res 2014-16-Treasure Coast Regional Planning-Board Support 

continued membership in the TCRPC; providing for distribution; providing an effective date; and 

for other purposes. 

SECTION 2: The Council hereby requests that this resolution be sent directly to the Palm 

Beach County Board of County Commissioners, the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council and all 
municipalities in Palm Beach County. 

 
 

SECTION 3:  Effective Date. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
 

ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, this 4th day of November, 2014.  

 

ATTEST:      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  

        FLORIDA 
_______________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk             __________________________________ 
        Mayor David Browning  
 

            __________________________________ 
        Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
      

                 __________________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 

______________________________   __________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Council Member Ryan Liang 
 

        __________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 

26 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6.b. 

RESOLUTIONS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-17 

(6th Court North-Equestrian Trail Improvement) 

 
 

27 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6.b 

MEETING DATE: 11/4/2014 

      
PREPARED BY:   Perla D. Underwood  

SUBJECT: Approval of Sealed Quotes – 6th Court North Equestrian Trail Improvements  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
 

  

Problem Statement: The Town Council authorized staff to procure a contractor to make the necessary 
improvements on the 6th Court Equestrian Trail.    
 
Problem Solution:  Select most responsive and responsible vendor. 

2014-10 Sealed quotes were opened for Project No 13-1020 on Friday, October 24. 2014 seeking a 
contractor to provide materials, labor, and equipment to construct and/or install the proposed 
improvements. Scope of work allowed for supply/installation of aluminum gates as an alternate. 

 
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
    

Three local contractors submitted sealed quotes:  Davis Backhoe Services, C & C Loader, and WBI 
Contracting of Palm Beach.  Davis Backhoe Services did not attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting.  After 
reviewing all quotes submitted, David Backhoe Services quote was not considered because of the failure 
to attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting.  The Alternate allowed as part of the sealed quote was 
determined to be in the Town’s best interest.   
 

• C& C Loader Services - $28,300 ($24,200 + $  4,100 – Alternate) 
• WBI of Palm Beach -     $38,600 ($23,600 + $15,000 – Alternate) 

 
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
  

   Sealed Quotes – Davis Backhoe Services, C & C Loader Services, and WBI of Palm Beach 
 

4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

  During both fiscal year’s 2014 and 2015, the Town Council adopted a capital improvement plan that 
included $80,000 for the development of horse trails.   

  

5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  

Motion to adopt a resolution by a 4/5 vote finding pursuant to Ordinance 2008-09 that further 
competitive bidding for the project is not in the best interest of the Town, authorizing the expenditure 
of $28,300 to C & C Loader Services to perform the improvements as detailed on the plan “Sheet No. 
C-0” prepared by the Town’s Engineers in the amount of $24,200, and to include supplying of two (2) 
aluminum gates at an additional cost of $4,100 gate. 

28 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



29 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



30 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



31 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2014-17 6th Court North {00043706.1 1574-0702400 }  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-17 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO THE 6TH COURT 
NORTH EQUESTRIAN TRAIL IMPROVEMENTS; FINDING THAT 
FURTHER COMPETITIVE BIDDING IS NOT IN THE BEST INTEREST 
OF THE TOWN AS PROVIDED IN ORDINANCE 2008-09; AWARDING 
THE CONTRACT TO C & C LOADER SERVICES FOR THE 6TH 
COURT EQUESTRIAN TRIAL IMPROVEMENTS AND 
AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF TWENTY EIGHT 
THOUSAND THREE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($28,300) FOR SUCH 
WORK; AUTHORIZING THE TOWN MANAGER TO EXECUTE 
THE NECESSARY DOCUMENTS TO PROCEED WITH THE 
WORK; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council authorized Town Management to procure a contractor to 

make the necessary improvements to the 6th Court Equestrian trail; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Management solicited sealed quotes for the proposed work, which 

was initially estimated to fall below $25,000.00; and,  

WHEREAS, the solicitation for sealed quotes included a request to price for aluminum gates 

as an alternative; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town received three (3) sealed bids, one of which was disqualified for failing 

to attend the mandatory pre-bid meeting; and,  

WHEREAS, while both of the responsive bids for the base project came in at less than 

$25,000.00, both included the alternative proposal for the use of aluminum gates requested by the 

Town, which then increased both responsive bids above the $25,000.00 threshold for formal 

competitive bidding in Ordinance 2008-09; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Management believes it is in the best interest of the Town to proceed 

with the alternative aluminum gates; and,  

WHEREAS, the lowest competitive bid that includes the alternative aluminum gates is from C 

& C Loader Services in the total amount of Twenty Eight Thousand Three Hundred Dollars 

($28,300.00); and,  

32 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2014-17 6th Court North {00043706.1 1574-0702400 }  

WHEREAS, Town Management requests that the Town Council find by the required 4/5 vote, 

pursuant to Ordinance 2008-09(C)(2)(h), that further procurement of the 6th Court North Equestrian 

Trials to include the aluminum gates is not in the best interest of the Town, in that the Town 

Management already engaged in a competitive process in order to obtain the sealed quotes for the 6th 

Court North Equestrian Trail Improvements, which included the request for quotes on the alternative 

aluminum gates; that the total amount awarded pursuant to this resolution exceeds the ordinance 

threshold by only Three Thousand Two Hundred Dollars ($3,200.00); rejecting the bids which have 

now been made public could influence a subsequent bidding process; and, the project would be delayed 

until a second competitive process could be completed, which likely means the project would not start 

until next year.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2:    Pursuant to Ordinance 2008-09(C)(2)(h), the Town Council finds that further 

procurement of the 6th Court North Equestrian Trial Improvements to include the aluminum gates is 

not in the best interest of the Town: 

a. The Town Management has already engaged in a competitive process in order to obtain the quotes 

for the 6th Court North Equestrian Trail Improvements, which included the request for quotes on 

the alternative aluminum gates; 

b. While the responsive base bids came in under $25,000.00, the alternative for aluminum gates was 

priced by both bidders and as a result both bids, with the aluminum gates, exceed $25,000.00; and,  

c. The Town Management believes that the use of aluminum gates for the project is in the best 

interest of the Town;   

d. The total amount awarded pursuant to this resolution exceeds the $25,000.00 formal competitive 

bidding threshold in Ordinance 2008-09 by only Three Thousand Two Hundred Dollars 

33 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 2014-17 6th Court North {00043706.1 1574-0702400 }  

($3,200.00);  

e. Rejecting the bids which have now been made public could influence a subsequent bidding 

process for the project;  

f. The project would be delayed until a second competitive process could be completed, which 

would likely result in the project not commencing until 2015. 

g. Considering these factors, it is in the best interest of the Town to award the work now as set forth 

herein, rather than rejecting the bids and recommencing the bidding process.  

Section 3: The Town Council awards the project, inclusive of the aluminum gates, to C 

& C Loader Services, and authorizes the Town Manager to execute all documents necessary to 

proceed with this direction.   

Section 4: The Town Council authorizes the expenditure of an amount not to exceed 

Twenty Eight Thousand Three Hundred Dollars ($28,300.00), for the completion of the 6th Court 

North Trail Improvements authorized herein.   

Section 5: That this Resolution shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 
ADOPTED  BY  THE  TOWN  COUNCIL  OF  THE  TOWN  OF  LOXAHATCHEE  GROVES, 
FLORIDA, THIS 4th  DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2014. 

 
ATTEST: 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA 

___________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk

  
Mayor David Browning 

 
 _____________________________________ 
 Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM: 
 Council Member Tom Goltzené 

Office of the Town Attorney Council Member Ryan Liang 

 Council Member Jim Rockett 

34 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 7.a.b. 

ORDINANCES 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-06 

1ST Reading/ Day Property Com Plan Amendment 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-07 

1st Reading/ Day Property Rezoning  

 

 

 
 

35 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.a.b.  

MEETING DATE: 11/4/2014 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, ICMA-CM 

 
SUBJECT:  Ordinances on First Readings; Public Hearings for Land Use Plan Amendment and 
Rezoning of the Willie H. and Frankie J. Day Property (Day Property) 
  

1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: A request for a land use and zoning change for the Day Property is needed 
before permits can be issued for construction.    
 
Problem Solution:  Town Council hold its first public hearing and adopt ordinances to provide for 
the land use and zoning changes.  

As the Council is aware, the Day Property has been under consideration for some time for approval 
of approximately a 9.3 acre parcel at the southwest corner intersection of Okeechobee Blvd, and 
Folsom Road.       

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
    
At the October 23, 2014, Planning and Zoning Committee meeting, the committee heard discussion on the 
application and merits of changing the land use and zoning of the subject parcel.  After considerable 
discussion, the Committee approved unanimously to approve both the land use change from Rural 
Residential to Commercial Low to accommodate future development.   
 
 
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
  
  Ordinance No. 2014-06 
Ordinance No. 2014-07 
 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  The land use and zoning changes will provide increased value to the Town’s ad valorem tax basis. 
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  

1. Open Public Hearing on Ordinance 2014-06. 
2. Close Public hearing after receiving comments. 
3. Motion to approve ordinance 2014-06 by a super majority vote. 
4. Open Public Hearing on Ordinance 2014-07. 
5. Close Public hearing after receiving comments. 
6. Motion to approve ordinance 2014-07 by a super majority vote. 

36 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Loxahatchee Groves Town Council Agenda Item No. 7.a  Report 

Meeting Date:  November  4, 2014 

Prepared By:  Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant 

Subject:  Day Property Comprehensive Plan Amendment (CPA) 14-02 (SS)  

A.  Background/History: 

 Issue Statement:  CPA 14-02 (SS) is an application for an amendment to  the 
Comprehensive Plan to change the Future Land Use Map designation of the Day 
property from Rural Residential 5 to Commercial Low.  The property is 9.30 acres in 
size and located at the southwest corner of Okeechobee Boulevard and Folsom Road. 

 Potential Actions:  (1)  Approve CPA  14-02 (SS); (2)  Deny CPA 14-02 (SS); or 
(3)  Approve CPA 14-02 (SS) subject to conditions. 

B.  Current Activity:   
 
CPA 14-02 (SS) and a companion rezoning application (REZ 14-02) have been filed to 
change the Future Land Use Map and Zoning Designations on the 9.30 acre Day 
property to Commercial Low (CL) designations. 
 
The Local  Planning Agency (LPA) recommended approval of the Staff recommendation 
(see below) at its meeting  on October 23, 2014 by a 5 – 0 vote. 

 
C. Attachments: 

 
  Staff Report which contains a detailed review of both CPA 14-02 (SS) and REZ 
14-02.  

 
D. Town Financial Impact: 

 
None.  Review of CPA 14-02 (SS) is funded by the Town’s Cost Recovery system. 
 

E. Recommended Action: 

Staff recommends approval of CPA 14-02 subject to the following conditions: 
 
  1.  The applicant shall record a Deed Restriction which will provide that the Intensity 

of development shall not exceed a floor-area-ratio (F.A.R.) of 0.074 in order to 
accommodate a maximum of 30,000 sq. ft. of commercial low intensity uses; 
provided that this restriction would automatically increase to whatever F.A.R. may be 
subsequently granted by the Town Council to any other Commercial Low designated 
property fronting on Okeechobee Boulevard and lying within the Town limits.  

1 of 2 
 

37 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2. A Conceptual Site Plan reflecting a 0.074 F.A.R. shall be approved as part of the 
initial rezoning process.  Subject to potential future F.A.R. increases permitted by 
Condition A.1, all future development uses, access and intensity shall be consistent 
with the Conceptual Site Plan.   

3.  Any increase in development intensity above a 0.074 F.A.R., as permitted in 
Condition A.1, shall be processed through the Town’s site plan or site plan 
amendment approval process, as appropriate.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2 of 2 

38 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



39 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



42 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



43 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



44 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



45 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



46 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



47 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



48 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



49 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



52 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



54 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



55 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



56 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



57 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



58 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



59 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



60 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Loxahatchee Groves Town Council Agenda Item No. 7.b Report 

Meeting Date:  November  4, 2014 

Prepared By:  Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant 

Subject:  Day Property Rezoning – REZ 2014-02 

A.  Background/History: 

 Issue Statement:  REZ 14-02 is a companion application to CPA 14-02 (SS) for 
an amendment to change the Zoning Map designation of the Day property from 
Agricultural Residential (AR) to Commercial Low (CL).  The property is 9.30 acres in 
size and is located at the southwest corner of Okeechobee Boulevard and Folsom 
Road. 

 Potential Actions:  (1) Approve  REZ 14-02; (2)  Deny REZ 14-02; or (3)  
Approve REZ 14-02 subject to conditions. 

B.  Current Activity:   
 
CPA 14-02 (SS) and a companion rezoning application (REZ 14-02) have been filed to 
change the Future Land Use Map and Zoning Designations on the 9.30 acre Day 
property to Commercial Low (CL) designations.  Approval of REZ 14-02 will make the 
Zoning Map designation consistent with the Future Land Use Map designation of the 
property, provided that CPA 14-02 is first approved by the Town Council  
 
The Local  Planning Agency (LPA) recommended approval of the Staff recommendation 
(see below) at its meeting  on October 23, 2014 by a 5 – 0 vote. 

 
C. Attachments: 

 
Staff Report, which contains a detailed review of both CPA 14-02 (SS) and REZ 

14-02.  
 
D. Town Financial Impact: 

 
None.  Review of REZ 14-02 is funded by the Town’s Cost Recovery system. 
 

E. Recommended Action: 

Staff recommends approval of REZ 14-02 subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. A County Traffic Performance Standards (TPS) review, including a concurrency 
determination, shall be completed at the time of site plan review, when a specific 
plan of development is proposed, in order to establish traffic-based building potential 
and the timing thereof.     

1 of 2 

61 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2.  Building height shall be limited to one story. 
 

3. The Rural Vista Guidelines, as directed by the Town Council, shall be 
incorporated within the design of the development at the time of site plan approval. 

4. Incorporation of on-site connectivity with the Red Barn commercial property to the 
west within the design of the project shall be investigated prior to site plan approval. 

5. Incorporation of a Palm Tran bus shelter within the design of the project shall be 
investigated prior to  site plan approval. 

6. A vegetative survey, including a Slash Pine inventory, shall be completed at the 
time of site plan approval, including identification of a Slash Pine preservation 
program. 

7. A plat pursuant to Article 140 of the Town’s Unified Land Development Code shall 
be filed with the Town. 

8. Prior to submitting a site plan application, the Roadway Equestrian Trails and 
Greenways (RETAG) Advisory Committee shall be consulted regarding the 
feasibility of  incorporating equestrian facilities within the development program. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   
2 of 2 

 

62 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



63 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



64 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



65 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



66 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



68 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



69 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



70 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



71 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



72 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



73 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



74 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



75 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



76 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



77 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



78 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



79 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



80 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



81 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



82 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



83 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



84 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.a.  

MANAGERS REPORT  

Agenda Item Report 

85 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO._8.a_  

MEETING DATE: 11/04/2014 

 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II 

  
SUBJECT:  Administrative Update  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council requests updates on activities and issues. 
 
Problem Solution:   Provide the Council with an update. 

At the Council meeting of October 7, 2014, it was noted that items in this category be provided 
as part of a written report. 
 

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

• Trails:  Staff received sealed quotes for Project No: 13-1020; Project Title: 6th Court 
North Equestrian Trail Improvements on October 24, 2014. 

o Three local vendors responded to Town’s request. 
o Staff recommending approval of C & C Loader Services Quote including 

Alternate in the amount of $28,300. 
o LGWCD must provide the Town an easement or license to use that would 

provide the Town site control before construction begins for equestrian trails. 
o Funds are budgeted for all trails in CIP in the amount of $80,000.  

• Road Clearance: Staff authorized work on Project Title:  Hedging 161st Terrace North, 
22nd Road North, Gruber Lane to C & C Loader Services in the amount of $6200. 

o Work to commence on October 28, 2014. 
o Funds are appropriated in Transportation Fund for vegetation removal in the 

amount of $40,000. 
• Trails: At the IGC meeting of October 23rd, the IGC received quotes to provide for 

surveying the trails/maintenance berms of LGWCD.  The low bid to the LGWCD for 
surveying all trails and roads was approximately $104,000.  The Town’s portion for 
surveying the trails is approximately $98,500.   

o The Town and District will be finalizing an inter-local agreement to provide 
specific funding and set forth various elements of the transaction to be presented 
at a future meeting of the Town. 

• LGWCD:  At the IGC meeting of October 23rd, a new business item was proffered by 
Councilman Jarriel to begin discussions on making the LGWCD a dependent entity of 
the Town of Loxahatchee Groves. 

86 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



• Roads:  At the IGC meeting of October 23rd, the committee reviewed a policy 
developed for the LGWCD to dispose of fill extracted by dredging canals.  In essence 
the fill will have priority use by the LGWCD, the Town, and then priority bid local 
residents followed by non-local entities, and finally, provided to local residents as is, and 
where is. 

• FAAC:  the Finance Advisory and Auditing Committee heard presentations from three 
(3) vendors offering Software as a Service (SaaS) for financial accounting software for 
the Town.  The Committee will review the presentations and provide feedback at their 
regular meeting of November 24, 2014. 

• Building:  Update to work related to the Chamber of Commerce building.  
o The Town has received two appraisals for the building alone.   
o Staff has completed the Cost Benefit Analysis  
o Building Inspection Report should be completed by next week.  
o Staff anticipates presenting a recommendation and report to the Town Council at 

the November 18, 2014 meeting. 
• Building:  Palm Beach State College has requested a special event permit for the ground 

breaking ceremony to be held on November 7th, 2014.   
o Negotiations continue for B Road improvements which will go from Southern 

Boulevard to Okeechobee Boulevard.  Staff is working toward holding the 
second hearing on an ordinance in November to provide appropriate zoning 
classification to the involved parcels. 

• Fire Rescue:  Report submitted by Mike Arena, PBC Fire Rescue 
 

 
  
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
 LGWCD Maintenance Maps – Equestrian and Roadside 
Palm Beach County Fire Rescue Response Time Reports 
    
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  Not applicable.  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
  Motion to receive and file report.  

87 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
                                                                                                    

14579 Southern Boulevard, Suite 2 • Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 33470 • Telephone (561) 793-2418 • Fax (561) 793-2420 • www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov 
 
 
 
 

October 24, 2014 
 
 
 

John Choquette 
C & C Loader Services 
1128 Royal Palm Beach Boulevard, #282 
Royal Palm Beach, FL 33411 
 
Dear Johnny: 
 
 Re:  Work Authorization 2014-10-24 
                    Hedging Services for thee (3) Town Roads 
 
Please be advised that you are hereby authorized to proceed with the Hedging Services as outlined and 
quoted in your sealed quote of October 17, 2014 for the following Town Roads: 

• 161st Terrace North 
• 22nd Road 
• Gruber Lane 

We would like you to begin this work at your earliest convenience.  Please contact Bev Kuipers at Town 
Hall to advise date of commencement.  Bev can be contacted at 561-793-2418 or at 
bkuipers@loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov. 
 
Thank your interest in our community and I look forward to working with you on this project. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
William F. Underwood, II 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

88 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov/
mailto:bkuipers@loxahatcheegrovesfl.gov


October 28, 2014

Via Email: yohe@lgwcd.org

Mr. Stephen Yohe, P.E.
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District
P.O. Box 407
101 West D Road
Loxahatchee Groves, FL 33470

Subject: LGWCD Maintenance Maps – Equestrian and Roadside

Dear Mr. Yohe:

Erdman Anthony is pleased to provide professional services for tasks as identified below.

Scope of Services

Specific Purpose Surveys
· Prepare a Specific Purpose Surveys of Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District

(LGWCD) maintained areas of Canals and Roads within LGWCD in accordance with
Chapter 5J-17, Florida Administrative Code, pursuant to Section 472.027 of the Florida
Statutes.

· Limits of data collection to include portions of “A” Road, “B” Road, “C” Road, “D” Road,
“E” Road, “F” Road, Folsom Road, West “G” Road, East “G” Road, 25th St. North,
Collecting Canal Road, and North Road. This data collection will be completed on both
the non-roadside and roadside areas of the right of way as shown on the attached maps.

· Horizontal data will be collected on the Florida State Plane coordinate system.
Horizontal data will be obtained using conventional and RTK GPS methods with an
accuracy of +/-0.2’.

· Field data does not include the mapping of trees and vegetation, surface or sub-surface
utilities, cross culverts and temporary structures.

· Deliverables will include five (5) signed and sealed 24”x36” plots of the Specific Purpose
Survey at the time of completion. The survey will depict an aerial backdrop with the
existing right of way and surveyed lines of maintained area only. The surveys will be
combined on one set of maps for the Canal Maintenance and Roadway Maintenance
Easements but sheet numbered to allow recordation of the separate easements.

89 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LGWCD Maintenance Maps – Road and Canal
October 28, 2014

Page 2 of 2

Schedule of events

· The acquisition of data will commence within one week from notice to proceed (NTP).
The Equestrian phase should be completed by January 15, 2015 provided a November 1,
2014 NTP is achieved. We will do our best to try to beat that date, however due to
holidays built into the schedule, it may not be achievable. The documents will be ready
to be submitted for recording at that time, but the actual recording date will be dictated
by the County.

Fee Schedule

Erdman Anthony’s compensation for the professional services outlined above will be lump sum
amounts as detailed below:

Mileage Fee
Entire Project – Equestrian 29.05 $127,174
                             Roadside 18.20 $9,500
Sub-Total Compensation $136,674

Recording Fees* – Equestrian (130 sheets) $1965
                                  Roadside (82 sheets) $1245
Total Compensation $139,884
*County recording fees are $30 for the first page and $15
for each additional page

Payment for professional services

Contract Terms and Conditions will be in accordance with the Second Amendment to Contract
between Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District and Erdman Anthony of Florida, Inc. for
Continuing Professional Engineering Services Agreement Number 2011-11.

We appreciate the opportunity to provide this proposal to you. If you should have any
questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (561) 753-9723.

Very truly yours,

Erdman Anthony

James F. Noth, PE, PSM
Vice President
k:\business-development\proposals\lgwcd\maint maps\october 2014\141024-proposalletter.docx

enclosures

90 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LGWCD MAINTENANCE MAPS
March 31, 2014

Equestrian/Canal Maintenance Maps 

 

PBC or FDOT Right of Way

Developer Obligation

Right of Way dedicated by recent Plat 

CANAL SEGMENTS
October, 2014



Road/ Segment
N

or
th

of
O

ke
ec

ho
be

e

So
ut

h
of

O
ke

ec
ho

be
e

So
ut

h
of

Co
lle

ct
in

g
Ca

na
l

TO
TA

LS
(M

ile
s)

A Road 2 1.25 0.4 3.65
B Road 2 1.25 - 3.25
C Road 2 1.25 - 3.25
D Road 2 1.25 - 3.25
E Road 2 1.25 - 3.25
F Road 1 1.25 - 2.25
G Square - West 0.5 - - 0.5
G Square - East 0.5 - - 0.5
25th Street North 0.5 - - 0.5
Folsom Road 0.5 1.4 - 1.9
North Road (N) 2 - - 2
North Road (S) 1.5 - - 1.5
Collecting Canal - 3.25 - 3.25
TOTALS (Miles) 16.5 12.15 0.4 29.05

LGWCD Equestrian/Canal Maintenance
Segments

October, 2014

92 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LGWCD MAINTENANCE MAPS
March 31, 2014

2.
0 

m
ile

s

1.
0 

m
ile

s

1.
25

 m
ile

s

Maintenance Maps prepared under OGEM Project

Road Maintenance Maps Required

PBC or FDOT Right of Way

Developer Obligation

Right of Way dedicated by recent Plat 

2.0 miles

1.5 miles

ROADWAY SEGMENTS
October, 2014



Road/ Segment

N
or

th
of

O
ke

ec
ho

be
e

So
ut

h
of

O
ke

ec
ho

be
e

So
ut

h
of

Co
lle

ct
in

g
Ca

na
l

TO
TA

LS
(M

ile
s)

A Road Done 1.25 N/A 1.25
B Road 2 N/A N/A 2
C Road Done Done 0.1 0.1
D Road Done 1.25 0.4 1.65
E Road 2 1.25 0.4 3.65
F Road 1 1.25 0.4 2.65
G Square - West 0.5 N/A N/A 0.5
G Square - East 0.5 N/A N/A 0.5
25th Street North 0.5 N/A N/A 0.5
Folsom Road 0.4 PBC PBC 0.4
North Road (N) 0.75 N/A N/A 0.75
North Road (S) 1.5 N/A N/A 1.5
Collecting Canal N/A 2.75 N/A 2.75
TOTALS (Miles) 9.15 7.75 1.3 18.2

LGWCD Road Maintenance Map Segments
October, 2014

94 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



23-Oct-14 MAINTENANCE MAPS SUMMARY

A Phase I Phase II Total

8/21/14 Proposal 8/22/14 Proposal
A & B $113,160 (11.3 Mi.) $122,225 (11.8 Mi.) $235,385 (23.1 Mi.)

Includes Road and 
Equestrian Berm But Not
Broken Out

Note: A & B Was not requested Savings If Awarded Phase I and Phase II Simultaneously

B Phase I Phase II Total

8/28/14 Proposal 8/28/14 Proposal
A & B $66,430 (11.9 Mi.) $65,305 (11.8 Mi.) 131,735 (23.7 Mi.)

Includes Only 
Equestrian Berm

Note: A & B Was not requested Savings If Awarded Phase I and Phase II Simultaneously

C Phase I Phase II Total

8/22/14 Proposal 8/22/14 Proposal 8/22/14 Proposal
E- A $57,750 (11.9 Mi.) $58,950 (12.0 Mi.) 116,700 (23.9 Mi.)

Includes Only 
Equestrian Berm

E- A Quoted Savings If Awarded Phase I and Phase II Simultaneously $104,250
* Savings if Phase I and Phase II authorized together $12450*

D Phase I Phase II Total

8/29/14 Proposal 8/29/14 Proposal 8/29/14 Proposal
E- A (10.5 Mi.) (12.0 Mi.) (22.5 Mi.)

$53,400 Berm $58,950 Berm $112,350 Berm
$5,900 Road $6,600 Road $12,500 Road

$59,300 Total $65,550 Total $124,850 Total

(22.5 Mi.)
$98,500 Berm

$9,500 Road
E- A Quoted Savings If Awarded Phase I and Phase II Simultaneously $108,000 Total

* Savings if Phase I and Phase II authorized together 16850*

95 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 

MEETING DATE: 11/4/2014 

      
PREPARED BY:    Michael Arena  

SUBJECT: Fire Rescue response time report  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: Maintain awareness of Fire Rescue response times and major incidents 
within Town limits. 

Problem Solution:  Provide for monthly and annual reports regarding activity 

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
    

• Fire Rescue have been provided to the area from Palm Beach County Fire Rescue since 
1984 and continued to the Town of Loxahatchee Groves after the town was incorporated on 
November 1, 2006 as the 38th municipality in Palm Beach County. 

• Service is provided through 49 fire stations within Palm Beach County and specifically from the 
fire station locates at 14200 Okeechobee Blvd known as station 21.  

• Station recently received new 2014  
 
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
  
   Response time reports for the last quarter of Fiscal Year 2014 (July, August, and September 
2014) 
 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  

  No new fiscal impact- The Town participates in the county fire MSTU which is the same as the 
other municipalities in the area (i.e Royal Palm Beach, Wellington).   

  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
    No Action required report is simply informational 

   

96 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Station

8/12/2014

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20140701 to 20140730

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

Emergency Calls:

06:59:3906:32:3506:28:0806:26:0206:25:5307/02/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:07:07 0:04:27 0:02:06 0:00:34F14092943

01:01:3100:20:1600:14:5000:12:1200:12:0407/04/2014 B RD  LOX21  0:08:37 0:05:26 0:02:38 0:00:33F14093831

08:51:4608:26:2408:21:0708:19:5908:19:3508:18:4607/04/2014 TANGERINE DR  LOX21  0:07:38 0:05:17 0:01:08 0:01:13F14093943

17:19:2616:25:0016:19:4916:18:2916:18:2216:18:1207/06/2014 161ST TER N LOX21  0:06:48 0:05:11 0:01:20 0:00:17F14095124

23:24:1522:56:3622:51:2122:49:5322:49:4607/11/2014 B RD  LOX21  0:07:15 0:05:15 0:01:28 0:00:32F14097739

16:20:5315:36:5515:31:5415:31:1815:31:1207/12/2014 24TH CT N LOX21  0:06:08 0:05:01 0:00:36 0:00:31F14098022

00:03:3823:10:3322:55:4722:54:1822:54:1422:53:5507/12/2014 42ND ST N LOX21  0:16:38 0:14:46 0:01:29 0:00:23F14098212

13:02:3412:17:0012:12:5812:11:0812:11:0012:10:4407/14/2014 B RD  LOX21  0:06:16 0:04:02 0:01:50 0:00:24F14098913

03:47:1002:15:3502:10:0602:08:2102:08:1402:06:3307/15/2014 B RD  LOX21  0:09:02 0:05:29 0:01:45 0:01:48F14099241

05:40:2405:14:2705:09:2905:08:0305:07:5505:07:1107/15/2014 B RD  LOX21  0:07:16 0:04:58 0:01:26 0:00:52F14099269

15:56:0214:51:1314:40:2714:39:1814:39:1107/18/2014 44TH ST N LOX21  0:12:27 0:10:46 0:01:09 0:00:32F14100949

15:51:0715:05:5515:01:0414:59:4714:59:3107/18/2014 COLLECTING CANAL RD  LOX21  0:06:49 0:04:51 0:01:17 0:00:41F14100960

16:32:3015:58:2015:52:2215:51:5915:51:4307/18/2014 E RD  LOX21  0:07:02 0:05:58 0:00:23 0:00:41F14100992

19:12:5718:23:0218:18:4118:17:2018:17:1518:17:0107/18/2014 COLLECTING CANAL RD  LOX20  0:06:01 0:04:21 0:01:21 0:00:19F14101052

11:08:1810:58:4410:52:3710:51:4710:51:3907/24/2014 B RD  LOX21  0:07:30 0:06:07 0:00:50 0:00:33F14103778

20:40:0920:02:5019:57:4519:56:2719:56:1919:55:1807/24/2014 C RD  LOX20  0:07:32 0:05:05 0:01:18 0:01:09F14104030

09:57:3209:22:5209:20:2709:19:0809:18:5707/26/2014 F RD  LOX21  0:04:20 0:02:25 0:01:19 0:00:36F14104764

17:11:0716:20:4816:14:1116:14:0216:13:5616:12:2107/27/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:08:27 0:06:37 0:00:09 0:01:41F14105424

Average Response Times:  0:00:44  0:01:18  0:05:53  0:07:56

Non Emergency Calls:

08:18:1308:15:3208:11:2708:10:2208:10:1107/05/2014 C RD  LOX21  0:05:46 0:04:05 0:01:05 0:00:36F14094501

12:15:3711:46:1111:37:4211:36:5911:36:4911:35:2707/17/2014 COLLECTING CANAL RD  LOX20  0:10:44 0:08:29 0:00:43 0:01:32F14100342

Corrupt Data:

Empty Time Fields11:24:4411:02:4811:02:4711:02:4207/13/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21F14098407

Enroute Time is greater than Onscene Time11:03:2010:27:2210:34:2810:27:2110:27:1907/16/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21F14099839

Empty Time Fields17:56:4317:54:5417:53:3617:53:3007/19/2014SOUTHERN BLVD/BINKS FOREST DR    PBC20F14101551

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 1 of 2
97 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Station

8/12/2014

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20140701 to 20140730

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

Empty Time Fields14:36:2014:34:1914:33:5907/22/2014 F RD  LOX21F14102897

 24Total number of Events:

*Represents call received to arrival.  If there is no received time, the County annual average call received to call entered time is used.

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 2 of 2
98 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Station

9/12/2014

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20140801 to 20140831

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

Emergency Calls:

07:14:5006:20:0406:13:4506:12:1906:12:1108/03/2014 COMPTON RD  LOX21  0:08:18 0:06:19 0:01:26 0:00:33F14108640

12:01:2311:40:1211:29:5111:29:0711:28:5511:28:3608/05/2014 MARCH CIR  LOX21  0:11:36 0:10:21 0:00:44 0:00:31F14109697

14:14:4213:20:0513:17:4313:16:0413:15:5708/05/2014 D RD  LOX21  0:04:33 0:02:22 0:01:39 0:00:32F14109751

22:51:3722:36:2222:27:5722:27:2522:27:1908/07/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:09:28 0:08:25 0:00:32 0:00:31F14110940

21:04:0320:21:1620:14:5620:13:5720:13:5008/08/2014 VALENCIA DR  LOX21  0:07:51 0:06:20 0:00:59 0:00:32F14111339

09:14:5108:40:2508:32:1108:31:1708:31:0908:30:5008/09/2014 161ST TER N LOX21  0:09:35 0:08:14 0:00:54 0:00:27F14111539

21:44:3420:59:5320:55:2520:54:0120:53:5620:53:4308/11/2014 COLLECTING CANAL RD  LOX20  0:06:10 0:04:28 0:01:24 0:00:18F14112860

11:41:2811:09:1811:03:3811:02:5611:02:4911:02:3208/12/2014 B RD  LOX21  0:06:46 0:05:40 0:00:42 0:00:24F14113081

21:53:1821:35:5921:34:5721:33:5221:33:4408/12/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:02:40 0:01:02 0:01:05 0:00:33F14113352

17:45:4417:26:2517:25:5917:25:0617:25:0008/13/2014 D RD  LOX21  0:01:50 0:00:26 0:00:53 0:00:31F14113768

09:32:3608:53:2208:49:3008:48:0508:47:5608:47:4008/17/2014 FOX TRL  LOX21  0:05:42 0:03:52 0:01:25 0:00:25F14115590

16:46:3816:05:3315:59:4915:58:5215:58:4608/17/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:07:12 0:05:44 0:00:57 0:00:31F14115772

22:37:5921:05:4621:00:0920:57:4520:57:3720:55:2708/18/2014 D RD  LOX21  0:10:19 0:05:37 0:02:24 0:02:18F14116422

07:28:3607:17:0207:12:1107:11:4207:11:3308/22/2014OKEECHOBEE BLVD/B RD    LOX21  0:05:54 0:04:51 0:00:29 0:00:34F14118120

01:01:3200:20:3500:13:4100:11:4900:11:4100:11:3208/23/2014 A RD  LOX20  0:09:03 0:06:54 0:01:52 0:00:17F14118544

17:45:4917:20:0317:14:2117:13:3617:13:2808/23/2014 COLLECTING CANAL RD  LOX21  0:07:00 0:05:42 0:00:45 0:00:33F14118850

15:01:5914:27:0114:23:5114:22:2714:22:2114:22:0508/24/2014OKEECHOBEE BLVD/A RD    LOX21  0:04:56 0:03:10 0:01:24 0:00:22F14119211

21:31:3621:14:4721:14:2921:13:2021:13:1508/25/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:01:57 0:00:18 0:01:09 0:00:30F14119955

22:11:1521:34:1521:28:1721:25:2321:25:1321:24:2708/25/2014 TANGERINE DR  LOX21  0:09:48 0:05:58 0:02:54 0:00:56F14119963

01:10:3100:45:4800:39:4600:37:5500:37:4608/26/2014F RD/13TH PL N    LOX21  0:08:27 0:06:02 0:01:51 0:00:34F14120001

Average Response Times:  0:00:35  0:01:16  0:05:05  0:06:57

Non Emergency Calls:

01:24:3801:18:5001:11:1901:09:0301:08:5808/03/2014SOUTHERN BLVD/BINKS FOREST DR    PBC20  0:10:17 0:07:31 0:02:16 0:00:30F14108577

06:52:3106:44:1306:38:3106:36:5406:36:4508/14/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:07:53 0:05:42 0:01:37 0:00:34F14114004

21:30:4120:43:2420:39:5620:37:5620:37:4820:37:3208/14/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:05:52 0:03:28 0:02:00 0:00:24F14114392

16:14:5316:03:2515:54:5815:53:5415:53:1608/20/2014SOUTHERN BLVD/E RD    PBC21  0:10:34 0:08:27 0:01:04 0:01:03F14117326

16:44:0516:32:2916:25:5416:25:4016:25:3008/20/2014 C RD  LOX21  0:07:24 0:06:35 0:00:14 0:00:35F14117343

19:59:0819:37:3019:25:4919:24:2119:24:1608/21/2014 FOREST LN  LOX21  0:13:39 0:11:41 0:01:28 0:00:30F14117939

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 1 of 2
99 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Station

9/12/2014

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20140801 to 20140831

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

21:03:5520:29:1820:24:1820:23:2020:23:1608/23/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:06:27 0:05:00 0:00:58 0:00:29F14118911

14:41:2013:34:0413:27:3513:26:0513:25:5713:25:2308/27/2014 G RD W LOX21  0:08:41 0:06:29 0:01:30 0:00:42F14120702

Corrupt Data:

Empty Time Fields22:57:5422:53:4922:53:1722:53:1308/02/2014BINKS FOREST DR/SOUTHERN BLVD    PBC20F14108546

Empty Time Fields13:09:5512:53:4512:53:4412:53:4308/06/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21F14110242

Empty Time Fields14:12:3214:11:2014:10:2014:10:1308/14/2014OUSLEY FARMS RD/SOUTHERN BLVD    WL20F14114215

Empty Time Fields21:28:3721:27:2021:25:2521:25:1908/22/2014C RD/24TH CIR N    LOX21F14118496

Possible problem with Received Time00:04:2423:23:0623:15:4423:13:4723:13:4223:09:1108/23/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21F14118977

Empty Time Fields15:39:3615:35:0115:33:1315:33:0508/20/2014 D RD  LOX21F14117317

Empty Time Fields10:19:1710:17:0910:16:0210:15:5208/23/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21F14118689

Empty Time Fields09:49:0709:13:4109:13:4009:13:3308/30/2014 D RD  LOX21F14122057

 36Total number of Events:

*Represents call received to arrival.  If there is no received time, the County annual average call received to call entered time is used.

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 2 of 2
100 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Station

10/22/2014

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20140901 to 20140930

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

Emergency Calls:

02:58:4402:33:2402:28:1202:26:2002:26:1202:25:5009/03/2014 CASEY RD  LOX21  0:07:34 0:05:12 0:01:52 0:00:30F14123814

13:00:0112:54:4412:53:1212:50:4712:50:4209/03/2014OKEECHOBEE BLVD/B RD    LOX21  0:04:27 0:01:32 0:02:25 0:00:30F14123990

12:39:0912:03:2511:58:3211:57:0611:56:4711:56:2509/05/2014 D RD  LOX21  0:07:00 0:04:53 0:01:26 0:00:41F14124959

05:02:0504:37:2704:30:3804:29:0304:28:5404:28:0309/06/2014NORTH RD/B RD    LOX21  0:09:24 0:06:49 0:01:35 0:01:00F14125335

05:27:0705:00:0004:54:2604:50:5904:50:4909/06/2014 COMPTON RD  LOX21  0:09:36 0:05:34 0:03:27 0:00:35F14125341

14:42:3114:13:4214:08:4614:07:3014:06:5709/11/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:07:10 0:04:56 0:01:16 0:00:58F14127888

14:22:1813:32:1813:27:2613:26:3313:26:2309/12/2014 COLLECTING CANAL RD  LOX20  0:06:20 0:04:52 0:00:53 0:00:35F14128377

17:15:0417:08:5417:04:2517:02:4417:02:4009/12/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:06:39 0:04:29 0:01:41 0:00:29F14128487

17:16:2816:50:4616:44:4116:43:3416:43:2809/13/2014 COLLECTING CANAL RD  LOX21  0:07:43 0:06:05 0:01:07 0:00:31F14128964

19:39:4218:45:3918:40:4618:39:5618:39:4818:39:3009/14/2014C RD/22ND RD N    LOX21  0:06:09 0:04:53 0:00:50 0:00:26F14129504

12:42:0111:57:2511:53:0411:52:1111:51:5211:51:3609/15/2014 D RD  LOX21  0:05:49 0:04:21 0:00:53 0:00:35F14129831

02:00:2301:24:5501:15:4701:13:4601:13:4001:13:1309/16/2014 161ST TER N LOX21  0:11:42 0:09:08 0:02:01 0:00:33F14130128

03:56:1103:08:5803:00:2602:58:2102:58:1502:57:5609/16/2014 NORTH RD  LOX21  0:11:02 0:08:32 0:02:05 0:00:25F14130144

11:17:4510:58:4910:45:5910:45:2510:45:2009/16/2014E CITRUS DR  LOX21  0:13:54 0:12:50 0:00:34 0:00:30F14130275

09:34:4808:41:4608:35:0408:33:5308:33:4209/17/2014 B RD  LOX21  0:08:29 0:06:42 0:01:11 0:00:36F14130675

15:19:4014:34:3814:25:1814:23:3814:23:2609/17/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:11:37 0:09:20 0:01:40 0:00:37F14130827

18:27:0918:09:1618:00:5917:59:3917:59:3209/17/2014 NORTH RD  LOX26  0:10:09 0:08:17 0:01:20 0:00:32F14130934

00:58:2700:46:4700:45:4800:44:1500:44:1100:43:3809/18/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:03:09 0:00:59 0:01:33 0:00:37F14131070

16:36:1416:03:2815:57:2415:55:5815:55:4809/18/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:08:05 0:06:04 0:01:26 0:00:35F14131373

11:07:5310:20:3210:16:5610:15:2410:15:1810:15:0309/19/2014 COMPTON RD  LOX21  0:05:29 0:03:36 0:01:32 0:00:21F14131692

20:35:5120:33:0920:29:4020:27:3320:27:2720:26:2709/19/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:06:42 0:03:29 0:02:07 0:01:06F14131988

06:25:2006:19:2706:14:4206:13:0406:12:5609/20/2014C RD/GRUBER LN    LOX21  0:06:56 0:04:45 0:01:38 0:00:33F14132130

01:38:3900:57:5000:51:0300:48:4900:48:3800:46:1409/22/2014 C RD  LOX21  0:11:36 0:06:47 0:02:14 0:02:35F14133043

17:38:4317:09:1617:02:4217:01:5317:01:4317:01:2309/22/2014 F RD  LOX21  0:07:53 0:06:34 0:00:49 0:00:30F14133385

20:21:1419:11:3219:08:2619:07:0619:06:5519:06:4009/22/2014 D RD  LOX21  0:04:52 0:03:06 0:01:20 0:00:26F14133438

14:42:4314:10:0114:07:0114:06:1514:06:0914:05:5309/25/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:04:08 0:03:00 0:00:46 0:00:22F14134681

13:01:5112:38:3312:33:0312:31:4112:31:3512:31:1309/26/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:07:20 0:05:30 0:01:22 0:00:28F14135127

15:34:1714:52:4814:46:4514:45:1814:45:0814:44:3509/26/2014 MARCELLA BLVD  LOX21  0:08:13 0:06:03 0:01:27 0:00:43F14135180

16:56:2916:33:1816:28:2816:27:1916:27:1309/29/2014 SOUTHERN BLVD  LOX21  0:06:30 0:04:50 0:01:09 0:00:31F14136674

20:03:1219:48:2719:43:3719:43:0019:42:3519:41:4909/29/2014 FOX TRL  LOX21  0:06:38 0:04:50 0:00:37 0:01:11F14136761

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 1 of 2
101 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Station

10/22/2014

Onscene Close

Palm Beach County Fire Rescue
 Loxahatchee Groves Response Time Report

20140901 to 20140930

ReceivedDate Entered Dispatch EnrouteLocation of EventEvent # Disp Hand Turnout Travel Resp Time*

Average Response Times:  0:00:40  0:01:29  0:05:36  0:07:44

Non Emergency Calls:

16:01:5015:49:5815:43:5015:42:3015:42:2215:41:2109/09/20146TH CT N/E RD    LOX21  0:08:37 0:06:08 0:01:20 0:01:09F14127005

21:46:2321:22:0521:15:1921:14:0121:13:5621:13:2509/14/2014 24TH CT N LOX21  0:08:40 0:06:46 0:01:18 0:00:36F14129555

07:05:2406:51:4106:47:2306:45:0906:45:0409/21/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21  0:07:02 0:04:18 0:02:14 0:00:30F14132633

19:27:2519:25:3119:22:0519:20:5219:20:3909/22/2014OKEECHOBEE BLVD/A RD    LOX21  0:05:17 0:03:26 0:01:13 0:00:38F14133445

Corrupt Data:

Empty Time Fields16:03:4816:01:0115:58:5915:58:5109/10/2014 B RD  LOX21F14127500

Empty Time Fields16:06:0515:54:3915:54:3815:54:3409/24/2014 OKEECHOBEE BLVD  LOX21F14134276

 36Total number of Events:

*Represents call received to arrival.  If there is no received time, the County annual average call received to call entered time is used.

Created by Jill Gregory on 10/08/2008 (updated 05/23/2012)

H:\Crystal\CAD\FIRECADARCH\City or Specific Areas\Municipal Response Time NEW 5-23-2012.rpt

Page 2 of 2
102 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.a. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Equestrian Signs 

103 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.a 

MEETING DATE: 11/04/2014 
      
PREPARED BY:   Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk  

 
 

SUBJECT: TOWN EQUESTRIAN SIGNS  
  
1.    BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  Equestrian notification signs needed within the Town Boundaries. 

 
Problem Solution:  Select sign design. 

  
2.    CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 
  

 The Roadway, Equestrian Trains and Greenway Committee (RETGAC) has designed and 
approved a sign design for the Town’s equestrian trails. 

  
3.    ATTACHMENTS  
     Sign design and cost for twenty-one (21) signs. 
 
  
  
4.    FINANCIAL IMPACT  
     Cost for manufacturing twenty-one (21) signs, and installation. 
     
5.    RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
  Request Council approve equestrian trail sign as presented. 

104 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



105 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



106 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.b. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Charter Change-Elections 

107 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AIR - Election Criteria 11-04-2014 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.b. 

MEETING DATE: 11/04/2014 
      
PREPARED BY:   Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   
   
   
   
   

SUBJECT:  CHARTER CHANGE:   
 

a. SECTION 3.  ELECTIONS AND TERM OF OFFICE (1) THRU  (3) d. (page 6) 
 

b. SECTION 7 – ELECTIONS  (1) THRU (7) h. (pages 15,16,17) 
  
1.   BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  
 Problem Statement:  Election criteria should not be incorporated within the Town Charter.   

 Problem Solution:   Remove the Election provisions from the Town Charter. 
  
2.    CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 
  

 The requirement of the Town Municipal Elections which need to conform to the Laws of Florida Chapter 
83-498 (Uniform Municipal Elections) cannot be changed unless they are presented to the electorate of the 
Town as a referendum either as a Special Election or during a regular Municipal Election. 

  
3.    ATTACHMENTS  
    Sections 3 and 7 of the Town Charter.  
  
4.    FINANCIAL IMPACT  
    There will be an initial financial impact for the Town Attorney to draft the required ballot language and           
required documents to remove this requirement from the Charter. 
    
5.    RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  

 Request Council instruct the Town Attorney to draft appropriate legislation for a referendum vote at the 
March 2015 Town Council Municipal Election. 
  
  
   
 
 

108 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



109 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



110 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



111 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



112 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.c. 

NEW BUSINESS 

RETGAC  

113 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10.c.  

MEETING DATE: 11/4/2014 
PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, ICMA-CM 

 
SUBJECT: Road, Equestrian, Trails, Committee (RETGAC) 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: The RETGAC enabling legislation requires additional clarification.    
 
Problem Solution:  Town Council provides guidance to the Town Attorney to more accurately 
delineate the duties and responsibilities of the committee.  

Over the last three (3) years the RETGAC members have been working on various equestrian 
trial issues.  Their latest and successful task is to provide a recommendation to the Council on 
the approval of trail signs for implementation on the new Town horse trails.    

  
2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
    
At the last meeting, it became clear that discussion had previously ensued regarding the duties 
and responsibilities of the committee.  In my review of Resolution 2011-005, it appears to me that 
Section 2. I. (B) 2. and 3. can be interpreted to include committee action without Town Council 
direction.  Staff would request the Town Council provide direction to the Town Attorney to 
modify the language to better explain the duties of the committee. 
 
Additionally, while the Attorney is drafting language to accommodate a more directed approach 
to the committee, I would respectfully request the Council place the committee on hold until the 
trail surveys is completed and language clarified.  
 
3.  ATTACHMENTS  
  
   Resolution 2011-005 
 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
  
  N/A  
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  

  

1. Motion to instruct the Town Attorney to modify the resolution to clarify Council 
directed activities on all advisory work the committee performs.  K 

2. Motion to temporarily suspend RETGAC meetings until further notice pending 
completion of trail survey and delivery to the Town, and resolution clarification. 

114 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



115 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



116 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



117 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



118 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



119 of 119   TC Agenda Packet 11/04/2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA
	2.a. Consent Agenda-Attorney Invoice
	2.b. Consent Agenda Minutes
	6.a. Resolution No. 2014-16-TCRPC
	6.b. Resolution No. 2014-17 - 6th Court North Equestrian Trails
	7.a.b. Ordinance No's. 2014-06 & 2014-07 Day Property 
	8.a. Managers Report
	10.a. New Business -Equestrian Signs
	10.b. New Business-Charter Change-Elections
	10.c. New Business-RETGAC



